# **CHAPTER 299F**

# STATE FIRE MARSHAL

299F.011	Uniform fire code; adoption.	299F.58	Certifications and reports.
299F.21	Fire insurance companies to pay cost	299F.60	Civil penalties.
	of maintenance.	299F.61	Injunctive relief.
299F.362	Smoke detection devices; installation;	299F.62	Plan for inspection and maintenance.
	penalty.	299F.63	Records and reports; inspections;
299F.56	Definitions; natural gas pipeline safety.		trade secrets.
299F.57	Minimum safety standards.	299F.64	Federal money.

## 299F.011 UNIFORM FIRE CODE; ADOPTION.

[For text of subds 1 to 5, see M.S.1986]

- Subd. 5a. Local board of appeal. Local governing bodies may appoint boards of appeal to hear and rule on appeals from orders issued under the fire code. An appeal from a local board of appeal may be made to the local governing body. If a board of appeal is not appointed, the appeals of orders must be made directly to the governing body. Local boards of appeal and governing bodies are not liable for damages in connection with granting variances, abatements, denials, or modifications of orders from the fire code that are made in good faith.
- Subd. 5b. When considering appeals for variances from the fire code, the local appeal board or governing body, the state fire marshal, a state administrative law judge, and a court shall take into consideration the benefit to be obtained by complying with the fire marshal's orders and the effect on affordable housing, provided that the spirit of the code is complied with and public safety secured.
- Subd. 6. A person who violates a provision of the uniform fire code shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. No person shall be convicted for violating the uniform fire code unless the person shall have been given notice of the violation in writing and reasonable time to comply. The notice must contain a statement explaining the right to appeal the orders.

History: 1987 c 201 s 1-3

#### 299F.21 FIRE INSURANCE COMPANIES TO PAY COST OF MAINTENANCE.

Subdivision 1. Estimated installment payments, On or before April 15, June 15, and December 15 of each year, every licensed insurance company, including reciprocals or interinsurance exchanges, doing business in the state, excepting farmers' mutual fire insurance companies and township mutual fire insurance companies, shall pay to the commissioner of revenue installments equal to one-third of, a tax upon its fire premiums or assessments or both, based on a sum equal to one-half of one percent of the estimated fire premiums and assessments, less return premiums and dividends, on all direct business received by it in this state, or by its agents for it, in cash or otherwise, during the year, including premiums on policies covering fire risks only on automobiles, whether written under floater form or otherwise. In the case of a mutual company or reciprocal exchange the dividends or savings paid or credited to members in this state shall be construed to be return premiums. The money so received into the state treasury shall be credited to the general fund. A company that fails to make payments of at least one-third of either (1) the total tax paid during the previous calendar year or (2) 80 percent of the actual tax for the current calendar year is subject to the penalty and interest provided in this chapter.

- Subd. 1a. Addition to the tax. In case of an underpayment of installments by an insurer, there must be added to the tax for the taxable year an amount determined at the rate specified in section 270.75 upon the amount of underpayment.
- Subd. 1b. Amount of underpayment. For purposes of subdivision 1a, the amount of the underpayment is the excess of: (1) the amount of the installment; over (2) the

amount, if any, of the installment paid on or before the last date prescribed for payment.

- Subd. 1c. Period of underpayment. The period of the underpayment runs from the date the installment was required to be paid to the earliest of the following dates:
  - (1) on March 1 following the close of the taxable year;
- (2) with respect to any portion of the underpayment, the date on which that portion is paid. For purposes of this clause, a payment of estimated tax on any installment date is considered a payment of any previous underpayment only to the extent the payment exceeds the amount of the installment determined under clause (1), for the installment date.
  - Subd. 1d. Definition of tax. The term "tax" means the tax imposed by this chapter.
- Subd. 1e. Failure to file an estimate. In the case of an insurer that fails to file an estimated tax statement for a taxable year when one is required, the period of the underpayment runs from the installment dates as set forth in subdivision 1 to whichever of the periods set forth in subdivision 1c is the earlier.
- Subd. 2. Annual returns. (a) Every insurer required to pay a tax under this section shall make and file a statement of estimated taxes for the period covered by the installment tax payment. The statement shall be in the form prescribed by the commissioner of revenue.
- (b) On or before March 1, annually every insurer subject to taxation under this section shall make an annual return for the preceding calendar year setting forth information the commissioner of revenue may reasonably require on forms prescribed by the commissioner.
- (c) On March 1, the insurer shall pay any additional amount due for the preceding calendar year; if there has been an overpayment, the overpayment may be credited without interest on the estimated tax due April 15.
- (d) If unpaid by this date, penalties and interest as provided in section 290.53, subdivision 1, shall be imposed.

**History:** 1987 c 268 art 2 s 30-36

## 299F.362 SMOKE DETECTION DEVICES; INSTALLATION; PENALTY.

[For text of subds 1 to 4, see M.S.1986]

- Subd. 5. Maintenance responsibilities. For all occupancies covered by this section where the occupant is not the owner of the dwelling unit or the guest room, the owner is responsible for maintenance of the smoke detectors. An owner may file inspection and maintenance reports with the local fire marshal for establishing evidence of inspection and maintenance of smoke detectors.
- Subd. 5a. Inform owner; no added liability. The occupant of a dwelling unit must inform the owner of the dwelling unit of a nonfunctioning smoke detector within 24 hours of discovering that the smoke detector in the dwelling unit is not functioning. If the occupant fails to inform the owner under this subdivision, the occupant's liability for damages is not greater than it otherwise would be.
- Subd. 6. Penalties. (a) Any person who violates any provision of this section shall be subject to the same penalty incurred for violation of the uniform fire code, as specified in section 299F.011, subdivision 6.
- (b) An occupant who willfully disables a smoke detector or causes it to be nonfunctioning, resulting in damage or injury to persons or property, is guilty of a misdemeanor.

# [For text of subds 7 and 8, see M.S.1986]

Subd. 9. Notwithstanding subdivision 7, or other law, the governing body of the city of Saint Paul may adopt, by ordinance, rules for the installation of a smoke detector in single-family homes in the city that are more restrictive than the standards provided

477

by this section. Rules adopted pursuant to this subdivision shall be enforced through the truth-in-housing inspection.

History: 1987 c 122 s 1: 1987 c 201 s 4-6

## INTRASTATE GAS PIPELINE SAFETY

## 299F.56 DEFINITIONS: NATURAL GAS PIPELINE SAFETY.

[For text of subds 1 to 6, see M.S.1986]

Subd. 7. "Commissioner" means the commissioner of public safety, acting through the director of pipeline safety.

History: 1987 c 353 s 14

### 299F.57 MINIMUM SAFETY STANDARDS.

Subdivision 1. The commissioner shall, by order, establish minimum safety standards for the transportation of gas and pipeline facilities. Such standards may apply to the design, installation, inspection, testing, construction, extension, operation, replacement, and maintenance of pipeline facilities. Standards affecting the design, installation, construction, initial inspection, and initial testing shall not be applicable to pipeline facilities in existence on the date such standards are adopted. Such safety standards shall be practicable and designed to meet the need for pipeline safety. In prescribing such standards, the commissioner shall consider:

- (a) relevant available pipeline safety data;
- (b) whether such standards are appropriate for the particular type of pipeline transportation;
  - (c) the reasonableness of any proposed standards;
  - (d) the extent to which any such standards will contribute to public safety; and
- (e) the existing standards established by the Secretary of Transportation of the United States pursuant to the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968 of the United States.

Provided, however, that the commissioner shall not be empowered to adopt any such standards as to the transportation of gas or to pipeline facilities which are subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Power Commission under the Natural Gas Act of the United States, except as provided in sections 299J.01 to 299J.17.

- Subd. 2. Any standards prescribed under this section, and amendments thereto, shall become effective 30 days after the date of issuance of such standards unless the commissioner, for good cause recited, determines an earlier or later effective date is required as the result of the period reasonably necessary for compliance.
- Subd. 3. The rulemaking, contested case and judicial review provisions of chapter 14, shall apply to all orders establishing, amending, revoking, or waiving compliance with, any standard established under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 or any penalty imposed under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64. The commissioner shall afford interested persons an opportunity to participate fully in the establishment of such safety standards through submission of written data, views or arguments, with opportunity to present oral testimony and argument.
- Subd. 4. The commissioner, on finding a particular facility to be hazardous to life or property, shall be empowered to require the person operating such facility to take such steps necessary to remove such hazards.
- Subd. 5. Upon application by any person engaged in the transportation of gas or the operation of pipeline facilities, the commissioner may, after notice and opportunity for hearing and under such terms and conditions and to such extent as the commissioner deems appropriate, waive in whole or in part compliance with any standards established under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64, on determining that a waiver of compliance with such standard is not inconsistent with gas pipeline safety. The commissioner shall state the reasons for any such waiver.

History: 1987 c 353 s 15

### 299F.58 CERTIFICATIONS AND REPORTS.

The commissioner is authorized to make such certifications and reports to the United States Secretary of Transportation as may be required from time to time under the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968 of the United States.

History: 1987 c 353 s 16

## 299F.60 CIVIL PENALTIES.

Subdivision 1. Any person who violates any provision of sections 299F.56 to 299F.64, or any rule issued thereunder, shall be subject to a civil penalty to be imposed by the commissioner not to exceed \$10,000 for each such violation for each day that such violation persists, except that the maximum civil penalty shall not exceed \$200,000 for any related series of violations.

- Subd. 2. The commissioner may negotiate a compromise settlement of a civil penalty. In determining the amount of such penalty, or the amount of the compromise settlement, the commissioner shall consider the appropriateness of such penalty to the size of the business of the person charged, the gravity of the violation, and the good faith of the person charged in attempting to achieve compliance, after notification of a violation. The contested case and judicial review provisions of chapter 14 shall apply to all orders of the commissioner imposing any penalty under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 or under any rule promulgated thereunder. The amount of such penalty, when finally determined, may be deducted from any sums owing by the state of Minnesota to the person charged.
- Subd. 3. No person shall be subjected to civil penalties under both sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 and under Public Law Number 90-481, Statutes at Large, volume 82, page 720, 90th Congress, S. 1166, approved August 12, 1968, for conduct which may give rise to a violation of both acts.
- Subd. 4. All penalties collected under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 shall be paid over to the state treasurer for deposit in the state treasury to the credit of the pipeline safety account.

History: 1987 c 353 s 17

## 299F.61 INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.

Subdivision 1. The district courts of the state of Minnesota shall have jurisdiction, subject to the provisions of the statutes and the rules of practice and procedure of the state of Minnesota relative to civil actions in the district courts, to restrain violations of sections 299F.56 to 299F.64, including the restraint of transportation of gas or the operation of a pipeline facility, or to enforce standards established hereunder upon petition by the attorney general on behalf of the state of Minnesota. Whenever practicable, the commissioner shall give notice to any person against whom an action for injunctive relief is contemplated and afford the person an opportunity to present views, and, except in the case of a knowing and willful violation, shall afford the person reasonable opportunity to achieve compliance. However, the failure to give such notice and afford such opportunity shall not preclude the granting of appropriate relief.

Subd. 2. Actions under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 shall be brought in the district in the state of Minnesota wherein the defendant's principal place of business is located, and process in such cases may be served in any other district in the state of Minnesota where the defendant may be found or of which the defendant is an inhabitant or transacts business.

**History**: 1987 c 353 s 18

### 299F.62 PLAN FOR INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE.

Each person who engages in the transportation of gas or who owns or operates pipeline facilities subject to sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 shall file with the commissioner a plan for inspection and maintenance of each such pipeline facility owned or operated by such person, and any changes in such plan, in accordance with the rules

prescribed by the commissioner. On finding that such plan is inadequate to achieve safe operation, the commissioner shall, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, require such plan to be revised. The plan required by the commissioner shall be practicable and designed to meet the need for pipeline safety. In determining the adequacy of any such plan, the commissioner shall consider the following:

- (a) relevant available pipeline safety data;
- (b) whether the plan is appropriate for the particular type of pipeline transportation;
  - (c) the reasonableness of the plan; and
  - (d) the extent to which such plan will contribute to public safety.

**History:** 1987 c 353 s 19

## 299F.63 RECORDS AND REPORTS: INSPECTIONS: TRADE SECRETS.

Subdivision 1. Each person who engages in the transportation of gas or who owns or operates pipeline facilities shall establish and maintain such records, make such reports, and provide such information as the commissioner may reasonably require to determine whether such person has acted or is acting in compliance with sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 and the standards established under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64. Each such person shall, upon request of an officer, employee, or agent authorized by the commissioner, permit such officer, employee, or agent to inspect books, papers, records and documents relevant to determining whether such person has acted or is acting in compliance with sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 and the standards established pursuant to sections 299F.56 to 299F.64. For purposes of enforcement of sections 299F.56 to 299F.64, officers, employees, or agents authorized by the commissioner, upon presenting appropriate credentials to the individual in charge, are authorized to enter upon, at reasonable times, pipeline facilities, and to inspect, at reasonable times and within reasonable limits and in a reasonable manner, such facilities. Each such inspection shall be commenced and completed with reasonable promptness.

- Subd. 2. In the course of the exercise of duties and responsibilities under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64, the commissioner shall wherever practicable employ a practice of spot checking and issuance of certificates of compliance, with respect to persons subject to sections 299F.56 to 299F.64, to limit costs of enforcement of the safety standards established pursuant to sections 299F.56 to 299F.64.
- Subd. 3. All information reported to or otherwise obtained by the commissioner or a representative, which contains or relates to a trade secret, as referred to in section 1905 of title 18 of the United States Code, or otherwise constitutes a trade secret under law, shall be considered confidential for the purpose of such laws, and is private or nonpublic data as defined in section 13.02. This data may be disclosed to other officers or employees concerned with carrying out sections 299F.56 to 299F.64 or when relevant in any proceeding under sections 299F.56 to 299F.64.
- Subd. 4. Cost of inspection and review. The commissioner shall establish, by rule under section 16A.128, a fee to recover the state share of all costs related to field inspections, investigations of pipeline facilities, plan review, and other duties as provided by sections 299F.56 to 299F.63. Fees collected under this subdivision shall be credited to the pipeline safety account.

History: 1987 c 353 s 20

#### 299F.64 FEDERAL MONEY.

The commissioner may accept any and all moneys provided for or made available to this state by the United States of America or any department or agency thereof with respect to prescribing, setting, and enforcing rules and safety standards for the transportation of natural and other gas by pipelines in accordance with the provisions of federal law and any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder and the commissioner is further authorized to do any and all things, not contrary to the laws of this state, required of this state by such federal law and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder in order to obtain such federal money.

History: 1987 c 353 s 21